1986

Karen Shumann Marchant v. Donald J. Marchant : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR APPEAL

As a result of the trial held June 18, 1986 before the Honorable Don V. Tibbs, Sixth Judicial District Court Judge, Karen Shumann Marchant, Appellant, requests that this Court review the following issues:

1. The custody award of the parties' two minor children, Sara Marchant and Brandon Marchant, to the Respondent, Donald Marchant, was an abuse of discretion of the Trial Judge.

2. The evidence offered at trial regarding custody does not support the Conclusions of Law that it is in the best interests of the children that the Plaintiff be awarded permanent custody.

3. The Trial Court Judge failed to properly apply the law to the facts in determining the best interests of the children in making the custody award to Donald Marchant.

4. The Trial Court's failure to award Karen Marchant alimony under the facts presented was an abuse of discretion and a misapplication of law to the facts.

5. The Trial Court's unequal distribution of Donald Marchant's pension plan was an abuse of discretion.

6. The Trial Court's failure to award \$15,000.00 to Karen Marchant as separate property, which she had received from a personal injury settlement, or its failure to consider the amount in the property distribution, was an error in law.

7. The Trial Court's award of interest on deferred payments of the pension plan at less than the statutory rate was arbitrary and an abuse of discretion.

8. The Trial Court's failure to award attorney's fees in light of Karen Marchant's need and Don Marchant's ability to pay was an abuse of discretion and a misapplication of law to facts.

STATUTES REQUIRING INTERPRETATION

The following statutes require interpretation:

1. Section 30-3-5 Utah Code Ann. (1984, as amended),
- Attached.
2. Section 30-3-10 Utah Code Ann. (1977, as amended),
- Attached.

STATEMENT OF CASE

Appellant Karen Marchant initiated this divorce proceeding against her husband of 18 years, Donald Marchant, on March 5, 1985, requesting custody of the parties' two minor children, Brandon, age 12, and Sara, age 9, child support, alimony and an equitable division of the marital assets. Donald Marchant answered, denying that Mrs. Marchant should be awarded a divorce or custody of the children.

Both parties initially moved for temporary custody of the children and child support. However, by Stipulation dated August 28, 1985 and entered by the Court October 2, 1985, Donald Marchant agreed that Karen Marchant should be awarded custody of the children subject to his right of visitation, that he would pay child support in the amount of \$200.00 per month per child, that the parties' home in Central, Utah, would be rented and that Karen would move to Salt Lake City to reside with the children until trial. (A copy is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; Stipulation and Order, Record pp. 17-19.) The Stipulation reflected the status quo. Donald Marchant had moved from the parties' home in Central, Utah, in March, 1985 to a trailer home at Karen Marchant's request (Transcript, p. 76).

Karen Marchant resided in Salt Lake City with the children from September, 1985 to June 18, 1986, the date of the trial. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce are appended hereto respectively as Exhibits "B" and "C" (Record pp. 30-49).

The Trial Court granted Karen Marchant's Petition for Divorce. However, it found that she was the cause for the marital breakup (Findings of Fact, para. 5.B., Record p. 32).

Judge Tibbs granted Respondent Donald Marchant custody of Brandon and Sara, based upon the following Findings of Fact:

5. In determining what is the best interests of the children for purposes of determining custody, the Court makes the following specific findings:

A. That both the Plaintiff and Defendant are good parents, and that both parties could be awarded custody of the minor children.

B. That the marriage entered into between Plaintiff and Defendant was broken by the actions on the part of the Plaintiff, which were not justified.

C. That when the Plaintiff vacated the family home in Central, Utah, and moved to Salt Lake City, Utah, in September of 1985, she moved into an apartment and in approximately November or December of 1985, her sister, another woman who is divorced, moved in with her, together with her minor child. That the standard of living under which Plaintiff has been residing while having the temporary custody of the children in Salt Lake City, Utah, is not what it should have been nor was it in the best interests of the children.

D. That during the latter part of the marriage between Plaintiff and Defendant, Plaintiff became involved with another man and this fact had an influence with the Court in determining what is in the best interests of the minor children.

E. That during the latter years of the marriage, Plaintiff's lifestyle changed and that change was not in the best interests of the family unit, but rather the change was pursuant to the Plaintiff's desires and for her benefit to the exclusion of the family unit.

(Record at pp. 31-32)

Karen was granted visitation of every other weekend, every other holiday and six weeks in the summer, and was required to make the children attend church each Sunday while in her care (Findings of Fact, para. 6, Record 33; Decree of Divorce, para. 3, Record pp. 42-43).

No child support was awarded to Donald Marchant (Decree, para. 7, Record p. 43).

The Court found that Karen Marchant was not entitled to alimony but made no other specific Findings of Fact on the point. (Findings, para. 8, Record p. 33, Decree, para. 5, Record p. 43.)

The parties' home in Central, Utah, was awarded to Donald Marchant, subject to a lien of one-half of the equity in the amount of \$17,000.00 in favor of Karen Marchant (Decree, para. 6.A., Record p. 43).

The parties' farm was determined to have a net equity of \$43,500.00 which was awarded equally to the parties in the amount of \$21,750.00 each (Decree, para. 6.B., at p. 44). Defendant was ordered to pay Plaintiff \$1,500.00 for the farm equipment in his possession (Decree, para. 6.C., Record 44).

To satisfy the awards to the Plaintiff totalling \$40,250.00, the Court ordered that the farm be sold by June 18, 1987, and Karen Marchant would be entitled to the first \$40,250.00 from the sale (Decree, para. 6.D., pp. 45-46).

Donald Marchant's pension plan with the United States Government Forest Service was found to have a value of \$18,000.00

which was then vested; the Court awarded Mr. Marchant two-thirds of the amount and Mrs. Marchant one-third of the amount, requiring Mr. Marchant to pay \$6,000.00 over ten years, in one annual installment, the unpaid balance bearing interest at eight percent per annum (Decree, para. 7, Record 47).

The Court found that Karen Marchant's net monthly income was \$1,321.00 and Don Marchant's was \$2,114.00 (Findings, para. 10, Record p. 37).

Each party was required to pay the debts which they incurred individually from and after October 2, 1985, except that Donald Marchant was required to pay medical and dental bills incurred by Mrs. Marchant and Sara and Brandon (Decree, para. 9, Record 47).

The Court found that neither party was entitled to an award of attorney's fees (Decree, para. 10, Record p. 48).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Donald and Karen Marchant were married September 8, 1967 in Salt Lake City, Utah, and divorced June 18, 1986, after an 18 year marriage. At the time of the divorce, Karen was 36 years old and Donald was 43 years old. Karen was 18 when they were married and had completed one year of college. Karen finished one more year of college and quit school to work while her husband completed his education (Transcript, lines 1-11, p. 28). Donald obtained a Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from Brigham Young University (Transcript, lines 6-10, p. 71).

Donald Marchant went to work for the United States Forest Service after graduation, finally being stationed in Richfield, Utah. The parties purchased a home in Central, Utah, and a farm in Central, Utah, in 1976. The source of the down payment of the farm is unclear. Mr. Marchant withdrew monies from his retirement (Transcript, lines 15-19, p. 99). Mrs. Marchant received a settlement from an automobile accident in the amount of \$15,000.00, which apparently was applied to the down payment as well as mutual debts and a loan to her brother (Transcript, lines 1-10, p. 100).

The Marchants were unable to have children and adopted Brandon in April, 1974, at age 2 months and Sara shortly after her birth on April 22, 1977. The parties resided in Central, Utah, until the marital split in March, 1985. During the marriage, both were active in the LDS Church, with Donald Marchant serving in two Bishoprics and Karen Marchant serving in the Relief Society Presidency.

Karen Marchant began work for Intermountain Health Care in Richfield, Utah, in 1982 (Transcript, lines 4-8, p. 31). Prior to that time, she had worked briefly at the start of the marriage. Prior to 1982, Karen and her husband had discussed her going to work part-time on several occasions. She returned to work to help with the debt on the farm. She was also concerned that she have a viable skill to earn money for her and her children in the event of Donald's death (Transcript, lines 10-19,

p. 31). After 1983, Kay Bowden and David Brown, both of whom were friends of the Marchants and belonged to the same ward, testified that Mrs. Marchant's work interfered with her church attendance and her goals apparently became more career oriented since she spent less time with her family and with them at church and social functions (Transcript, lines 20-25, p. 120; lines 1-21, p. 121; lines 4-20, p. 124).

Mrs. Bowden was employed as a teacher's aid at the local elementary school (Transcript, lines 4-5, p. 115). She testified that during the time Donald and Karen were having marital problems, she confronted Karen in her home after a return from a business trip. Mrs. Bowden states that Karen's appearance had changed and that "everything was for Karen. We were no longer in her field." (Transcript, lines 9-11, p. 116). She further stated that Karen told her she would not work for peanuts like Mrs. Bowden was and that "when I leave my home, I leave my home-made cookies and homemade bread." (Transcript, lines 15-16, p. 116). Mrs. Bowden, in concluding her testimony, stated "I just don't think Karen has been fair to us. How long has she been faithful to us as a friend? And that's what I feel I'm really concerned about." (Transcript, lines 13-15, p. 118).

In response to allegations that her career takes precedence over her family, Mrs. Marchant testified "My career aspirations were to be a wife and a mother. And a job is nice and I am grateful I enjoy my work. But I certainly wouldn't term myself a

career girl or woman, or whatever. I'm grateful I enjoy my work." (Transcript, lines 12-16, p. 60).

In March, 1985, Mr. Marchant vacated the parties' home in Central, Utah, at the request of Mrs. Marchant (Transcript, lines 10-17, p. 76). During this period, the parties received marriage counseling from Dr. Richard Kirkham (Transcript, lines 5-9, p. 29). Finally, in August, 1985, Karen filed the Petition for Divorce and in September, 1985, pursuant to Stipulation attached hereto as Exhibit "A", moved to Salt Lake City, Utah with the parties' two children.

A. Facts Supporting Divorce Petition:

Mrs. Marchant testified that she and her husband were sexually and financially incompatible (Transcript, lines 8-17, p. 27). Additionally, in April, 1985, the Marchants engaged in an angry argument which resulted in Donald Marchant striking his wife and knocking her unconscious (Transcript, pp. 102 and 109). She testified that the turning point in her marriage was when her husband forced her to have sexual relations the night she returned from the hospital after a complicated operation and she was very ill (Transcript, lines 23-25, p. 63; lines 1-5, p. 64). Mrs. Marchant also stated she did not feel good about the kind of control Mr. Marchant tried to exercise in the kinds of clothing she wore and was critical of her (Transcript, lines 7-18, p. 54). Her husband objected to her sunbathing and going to hot tubs "things she'd never gone to before in our marriage" (Transcript, lines 18-21, p. 74; lines 1-5, p. 75).

Mr. Marchant did not want a divorce and desired reconciliation (Transcript, lines 1-7, p. 21).

B. Facts Relating to Custody:

1. Conditions in Salt Lake City. Mrs. Marchant had been the primary caretaker of Brandon and Sara during the marriage; she continued in this capacity despite her working full time both in Central, Utah, and Salt Lake (Defendant's Exhibit 9, "Recommendations", p. 3).

Mrs. Marchant maintained sole custody and control of the children from March, 1985, to June 18, 1986, the date of the trial. In September, 1985, when Mrs. Marchant moved to Salt Lake City, her husband agreed that she take the children with her to reside in Salt Lake (Stipulation-Order, Exhibit "A" herein). During that period, Mr. Marchant exercised visitation every other weekend by taking the children back to Central, Utah, from Salt Lake City, Utah.

Sara and Brandon both adjusted well to living in Salt Lake and performed well in school and established friends (Defendant's Exhibit 9, "Evaluation of Brandon Marchant"; "Evaluation of Sara Marchant"). Their scores on report cards indicate they maintained or improved grades at William Penn Elementary School (Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 and 2; Transcript, pp. 33-34).

While in Salt Lake, Mrs. Marchant took the children to ballet, concerts, theatre, movies, and hiking; she took skiing

lessons with Brandon on the weekends (Transcript, p. 35).

Brandon had several friends; and Sara enjoyed friendships with several children (Transcript, p. 39).

Elizabeth Stewart, the custody evaluator, stated with respect to the living situation in Salt Lake City, a clear preference for maintaining the status quo:

Situational factors:

1. Maintaining a satisfactory custody arrangement when the children are happy and well adjusted. There is a preference for leaving a custody arrangement in place where it is clear that they have made a reasonably good adjustment, and there is no reason to think that they are not doing well or that a different custody arrangement would be clearly better for them. In this respect, both the Marchant children have adjusted well although it is quite clear in observing them with their father that they miss him a great deal. It also seems likely that Sara's depression and feelings of loneliness are related to her father's absence. However, if she were living with her father she may well feel as sad and lonely because of her mother's absence.

2. The least disruptive placement. Since the children are doing well in their mother's custody at the present time the least disruptive placement would be to leave them in her custody.

3. Primary caretaker. Although Mrs. Marchant has worked full time in recent years, she has been the primary caretaker. Mr. Marchant, however, has provided direct care also although the division of parental responsibility has been quite traditional in this family. Mrs. Marchant could adapt to being the primary caretaker.

(Defendant's Exhibit 9, "Recommendation, p. 3)

Donald Marchant did not like the idea of his children being raised in Salt Lake.

"Q. Why do you think the children would be better off being raised in Central as opposed to Salt Lake?

A. I think there is more responsibility for them there. I do not like the city environment for children. I don't like the household environment they're in right now. . . ."

(Transcript, lines 13-19, p. 89)

Also, Mr. Marchant, in cross-examination, was asked about changes he observed in the children since living in Salt Lake. He replied:

"A. I would say more of a worldly approach to things, a little slick sophistication. It's hard to define. It's they're exposed to a different kind of people in Salt Lake. Brandon has attended several parties. He has been invited to go to the movies with girls and things in Salt Lake and it's a different lifestyle."

(Transcript, lines 7-12, p. 106)

Donald Marchant testified his wife had not tried to turn the children against him while in Salt Lake (Transcript, p. 87). Don's activities on every other weekend with the children were fishing, hunting, swimming, bowling, boy scout trips, horseback riding and rodeos (Transcript, p. 88).

2. Living conditions in the duplex. When Mrs. Marchant moved to Salt Lake, her sister, Helen, who is divorced and has a son, moved in with them in November or December, 1985; each person had their own bedroom (Transcript, lines 7-19, p. 45).

Much has been made of Karen living with Helen, "a divorced woman" so the testimony offered regarding Helen and the apartment is particularly relevant in light of Finding of Fact 5.C. In opening remarks, the Defendant's counsel stated that Mr. Marchant was concerned with the living situation in Salt Lake in that Mrs. Marchant was living with her sister, whom Mr. Marchant believed had "moral problems" (Transcript, lines 4-8, p. 25). Mr. Marchant's entire testimony regarding Helen is as follows:

A. Allusion was made to Helen and her presence in the home. I don't dislike Helen as a person. I'd like to put that on the record. But I do object to her being the mother of my children.

Q. Why do you think she's a mother to your children?

A. She's home more than Karen and she does a lot of mothering as far as I can tell.

Q. Do you think she is a good or a bad influence on the children?

A. I would have to say bad.

Q. Why do you say that?

A. Because her moral values do not coincide with what I think is right."

(Transcript, lines 18-25, p. 89; lines 1-5, p. 90)

Mrs. Marchant's testimony was that her sister, Helen, had a boyfriend, Chuck Moore, who came to the home but never stayed overnight (Transcript, lines 6-14, p. 46); that Helen occasionally brings alcohol into the duplex but that she has discussed Helen's drinking with the children and "they know my

standards and their own." (Transcript, lines 8-21, p. 47). She also stated that she did not agree with Helen's past relationships with men but that had changed (Transcript, lines 14-24, p. 49).

Karen's work schedule was leaving home at 7:30 a.m. and returning from work at 5:00 p.m. (Transcript, lines 12-21, p. 55). When she worked through her lunch, she would arrive home at 4:00 p.m. The children left for school at 9:00 a.m. and returned at 4:00 p.m. and were cared for by Helen while Karen was absent (Transcript, lines 1-22, p. 56). When Karen went out late at night, Sara and Brandon were cared for by a twin sister, Kathy, who lived close to the duplex. Kathy had children approximately the same age as Sara and Brandon (Transcript, lines 1-9, p. 57).

In addition to Karen's two sisters and their children living in Salt Lake, Karen's mother also resided in Salt Lake; additionally, Donald Marchant's parents and Karen Marchant's other brother and sister lived in Peoa, Utah (Transcript, lines 1-10, p. 62).

C. Facts relating to "involvement with another man."

A significant dispute between Donald and Karen Marchant existed over Karen's friendship with her boss, Doug Fonnesbeck, in Richfield, Utah. Conflicting testimony was offered regarding the extent of their relationship. Mrs. Marchant was unequivocal that nothing beyond a friendship existed and Mr. Marchant

insisted Karen was in love with him. However, it was clear that nothing of a sexual nature ever occurred. Doug Fannesbeck was Karen's immediate supervisor at Intermountain Health Care in Richfield, Utah; she first met him when she went to work in 1982 (Transcript, lines 20-21, p. 50).

Donald Marchant tied the trouble in his marriage to Doug Fannesbeck. He believed his marriage was in trouble when his wife stated what a wonderful man her boss was and that people in town were talking about her and her boss (Transcript, lines 16-23, p. 72). Mr. Marchant testified that he asked her about the relationship, and she reportedly stated that there was a "sexual attraction" (Transcript, lines 1-3, p. 73). In contrast, when asked about the relationship on cross-examination, Karen Marchant states:

"Q. Do you recall telling Mr. Marchant when he asked you what the relationship was that you might be in love, but it didn't matter because you could handle it?"

A. No. I didn't say that. I said that there was a possibility that I could sometime, if my situation were different, have liked Mr. Fannesbeck because I find him an interesting person. But that was the extent of it. There was no inclination on my part to have a relationship with Mr. Fannesbeck in any way. I was married and committed to my marriage."

(Transcript, lines 9-18, p. 52)

The "relationship" between Karen Marchant and her boss was based upon evidence introduced at trial regarding items which Mr. Marchant believed were gifts from Doug Fannesbeck. Mr.

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