1986

Karen Shumann Marchant v. Donald J. Marchant : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The trial court acted within the bounds of its discretion in making the determinations of custody and property distribution. The trial court's findings concerning child custody were specifically related to the best interests of the children, their living conditions, and the respective parental qualifications and attitudes. Likewise, the trial court's approach to property division and alimony was equitable and within the recognized bounds of discretion.

2. The trial court fully and appropriately considered the best interests of the children and other pertinent criteria in awarding custody to the defendant. The specific findings regarding child custody are based on and articulate factors relevant to the best interests of the children as well as the

past conduct and demonstrated moral character of the parties. These criteria are statutorily prescribed in U.C.A. § 30-3-10 (1977) and are among those set forth in case precedent and expert commentary. Being faced with a choice between "good and better," the trial court specifically based its decision on the respective home environments, Plaintiff's evolving moral attitudes as a factor in the marital breakup, and Plaintiff's apparent selfishness at the family's expense. All of these and other determinative criteria were based in applicable law and well within the trial court's bounds of discretion.

3. An award of alimony was unnecessary and would have been inappropriate under the circumstances. Both parties were employed; each having good job security and each having an income sufficient to meet their respective needs. Both parties admittedly had been living beyond their means, and therefore, neither could expect to continue with their "accustomed lifestyle." Neither party represented any great potential for becoming a public charge. No alimony was warranted and the trial court, as a matter of discretion and obvious choice, made no such award.

4. The property distribution was fair and equitable in all respects, and the trial court exercised appropriate discretion in making its awards. Plaintiff received exactly one-half of all marital assets except for defendant's pension fund. The Plaintiff will be "cashed out" of a diversity of family property

including real property whose values have been economically eroded since the decree was entered. By at least one stated rule of thumb, Plaintiff might have received only one-third of the marital property as a matter of acceptable trial court discretion. Defendant would have had to quit his job to have access to the accumulated pension amount sought by Plaintiff which would have worked an unfair hardship on Defendant. The trial court's award was just, equitable and devoid of prejudicial discretion.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE TRIAL COURT ACTED WITHIN THE BOUNDS OF ITS DISCRETION IN MAKING THE DETERMINATIONS OF CUSTODY AND PROPERTY DISTRIBUTION

The factors upon which the trial court relied in rendering its decision are clearly stated and properly applied to the resolution of the issues before it. The court's observations with respect to the best interests of the children and other pertinent custody considerations are rational and straightforward. Likewise, the property values and the basis for the respective awards are specifically spelled out.

On review of such issues, the Utah Supreme Court has stated:

The trial court, in a divorce action, has considerable latitude of discretion in adjusting financial and property interests. A party appealing therefrom has

the burden to prove there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or the evidence clearly preponderates against the findings; or such a serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion.

English v. English, 565 P.2d 409, 410 (Utah 1977). See also Mitchell v. Mitchell, 527 P.2d 1359 (Utah 1974) and Baker v. Baker, 551 P.2d 1263 (Utah 1976).

Trial court discretion is particularly broadened and emphasized in child custody decisions. In Jorgensen v. Jorgensen, 599 P.2d 510 (Utah 1979) the Utah Supreme Court emphasized their position with respect to alteration of custody decisions stating:

[T]he trial court is given particularly broad discretion in the area of child custody incident to separation or divorce proceedings. A determination of the "best interests of the [children]" frequently turns on numerous factors which the trial court is best suited to assess, given its proximity to the parties and the circumstances. Only where trial court action is so flagrantly unjust as to constitute an abuse of discretion should the appellate forum interpose its own judgment.

Id. at 511-12, quoted in, Wall v. Wall, 700 P.2d 1124, 1125 (1985).

Based on the evidence presented, the trial court in the present case has articulated specific findings relative to the best interests of the children, their living conditions, the relative parental qualifications, and parental disposition with respect to the care and nurturing of the minor children.

All of the findings made by the trial court in this matter are completely within its discretion. There was no misunderstanding or misapplication of the law which resulted in substantial and prejudicial error, there is no evidence which clearly preponderates against any finding, nor is there any serious inequity resulting which might otherwise manifest an abuse of the trial court's discretion. With respect to the custody of the children, there is nothing in evidence or on record to persuasively show that the custody determination made by the trial court is "flagrantly unjust" or contrary to the best interests and welfare of the children and the family.

POINT TWO

THE TRIAL COURT FULLY AND APPROPRIATELY CONSIDERED THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE CHILDREN AND OTHER PERTINENT CRITERIA IN AWARDED CUSTODY TO THE DEFENDANT

It is generally understood that in a divorce action, the court has and retains jurisdiction over matters of child custody as directed by Utah Code Annotated Section 30-3-5(3) (1985). In making the initial determination of which of the divorcing parents should have custody, the court gets its direction from Utah Code Annotated Section 30-3-10 (1977) which states:

[W]henver a marriage is declared void or dissolved the court shall make such order for the future care and custody of the minor children as it may deem just and proper. In determining custody, the court shall consider the best interests of the child and the past conduct and demonstrated moral standards of each of the parties (Emphasis added.)

From this statutory instruction, recent opinions have focused on categorical consideration of some of the factors which may be determinative of the best interests of the child. See Hutchison v. Hutchison, 649 P.2d 38 (Utah 1982); Pusey v. Pusey, 728 P.2d 117 (Utah 1986). In both of these opinions, the court cites factors which might be considered in developing an overall view of the best interests of the child, as indicated by the above-cited statute.

Plaintiff cites Hutchinson and Pusey in her brief to support her position that the court is somehow bound solely to these criteria. However, the language of the various cases is most illustrative with respect both to the various factors, and the court's discretion in applying or dealing with them. For example, in Hutchison, the court emphasizes the broad discretion vested in the trial court both as a preamble to the factors noted in the opinion, and in the court's concluding remarks on the point, stating:

Some factors the court may consider in determining the child's best interests relate primarily to the child's feelings or special needs; the preference of the child; keeping siblings together; the relative strength of the child's bond with one or both of the prospective custodians; and, in appropriate cases, the general interest in continuing previously determined custody arrangements where the child is happy and well adjusted. Other factors relate primarily to the prospective custodian's character or status or their capacity or willingness to function as parents; moral character and emotional stability, duration and depth of desire for custody, ability to provide personal rather than surrogate care, significant impairment of ability to function as a parent through drug abuse,

excessive drinking, or other cause; reasons for having relinquished custody in the past; religious compatibility with the child; kinship, including in extraordinary circumstances, step-parent status; and financial condition. (These factors are not necessarily listed in order of importance.)

Assessments of the applicability and relative weight of the various factors in a particular case lie within the discretion of the trial court. "Only where trial court action is so flagrantly unjust as to constitute an abuse of discretion should the appellate forum interpose its own judgment. (Parenthetical in original. Emphasis added.)

Id., citing Jorgensen, supra, at 512.

Certainly the court did not intend by this helpful instruction to generate a finite list of factors to be considered. The court in effect added to the list in Pusey:

We believe that the choice in competing child custody claims should instead be based on function-related factors. Prominent among these, though not exclusive, is the identity of the primary caretaker during the marriage. Other factors should include the identity of the parent with greater flexibility to provide personal care for the child and the identity of the parent with whom the child has spent most of his or her time pending custody determination if that period has been lengthy. Another important factor should be the stability of the environment provided by each parent. (Emphasis added.)

Id. at 120, citing Atkinson, Criteria for Deciding Child Custody in the Trial and Appellate Courts, 18 Fam. L. Q. 1 (Spring 1984).

It is interesting and pertinent to note that the general emphasis of the Pusey case was to disavow any gender-based preference for determining the custodial parent. It is also interesting in that case that the court makes reference to the

earlier hypothetical scenario where "all other things being equal," there was a presumed preference to place children with the mother. Such a preference or presumption was specifically overruled in Pusey. However, in the case at bar, based on the testimony of Dr. Elizabeth Stewart, the clinical psychologist, the court specifically found that both parties are good parents, and both parties could be awarded custody of the minor children. (Tr. at page 7.) This sets up the situation alluded to in Pusey where from the start all things appeared to be equal. The trial court subsequently considered other criteria to "break the tie."

The court found itself in a situation quite similar to that of the trial court in Hogge v. Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (Utah 1982). There it appeared that both the father and the mother were fit and proper and it was recognized that the court's decision required a finding of what was "'reasonable and necessary' for the 'best interest' of the child -- a standard which may frequently and of necessity require a choice between good and better." Id. at 55.

In the present case, in deciding between good and better, the trial court articulated various specific findings which governed its ultimate decision on custody. Some of the stated findings are among those cited in Hutchinson and Pusey. Those findings dealing specifically with custody are the following:

1. Finding of Fact 5.A. That both the plaintiff and defendant are good parents, and that both parties could be awarded custody of the minor children.

As discussed above, this finding wherein the court knew that it was dealing with a "close call," placed the court in the difficult position choosing between good and better.

In Wall v. Wall, 700 P.2d 1124 (Utah 1985), the lower court was similarly faced with a determination between good and better. In affirming the lower court's award of custody to the mother, this court stated:

In the instant case, the evidence, depending upon how it is viewed, could support a custody award to either party. In such case, we will defer to the judgment of the trial court. It was therefore not an abuse of discretion for the trial court to award custody to defendant.

Id. at 1125

2. Finding of Fact 5.B. That the marriage entered into between Plaintiff and Defendant was broken by the actions on the part of Plaintiff which were not justified.

This finding supports the court's apparent conclusion that Mrs. Marchant's unjustified acts of selfishness and rebellion and her unstable and changing moral values were inconsistent with a parental role. Without listing any specific actions, this finding is indicative of the court's consideration of the "past conduct and demonstrated moral character of each of the parties," particularly when viewed in light of the testimony of Dale Woolsey, Kay Bowden and Dave Brown. Since this standard is clearly articulated in the custody statute, it would certainly be within the court's discretion to apply such a finding to its overall custody decision.

3. Finding of Fact 5.C. That when the plaintiff vacated the family home in Central, Utah, and moved to Salt Lake City, Utah, in September of 1985, she moved into an apartment and in approximately November or December of 1985, her sister, another woman who is divorced, moved in with her, together with her minor child. That the standard of living under which plaintiff has been residing while having the temporary custody of the children in Salt Lake City, Utah, is not what it should have been nor was it in the best interests of the children.

There is no question that this finding is specifically related to the best interests of the children. The finding recognizes that the children were living in a situation where two families were found under the same roof. Testimony indicated that Plaintiff's sister, Helen, did much of the caring for and "mothering" of the children. There is direct testimony that this "mother figure" had no qualms about bringing alcohol into the home which necessitated specific moral instruction to the children with respect to it.

By comparison, the father's home presented no such moral obstacles, and in fact it represented the childrens' closest association with the typical and traditional home life. As a matter of the childrens best interests, the trial court disapproved of the communal lifestyle presented by the Salt Lake City arrangement in favor of the traditional lifestyle in the father's home and surroundings where the children had both been raised since birth.

4. Finding of Fact 5.D. That during the latter part of the marriage between plaintiff and defendant, plaintiff became involved with another man and this had an influence with the court in determining what is the best interests of the minor children.

Again, this addresses Plaintiff's past conduct and demonstrated moral character which is a statutory criteria for determining child custody. Although different conclusions may be drawn from this finding with respect to the seriousness of the involvement, the court need not be more specific or explicit in its language. There was some conflict in the evidence where Plaintiff stated that she had never been sexually involved outside the marriage; but, she admitted to spending some time alone in a motel room with a man she admittedly loved to whom she had sexual attractions, and who had repeatedly given her gifts and flowers. (Tr., p. 72-76). The trial court obviously found it morally inappropriate for Mrs. Marchant to tolerate and rejoice in these gifts from her boss. These and other subtle indications that a new relationship was in bloom allow the direct conclusion that such overtures aided the cooling process in the marital relationship. For Mrs. Marchant to flaunt these gifts from a man to whom she was not married, while not immoral per se, had an obvious undermining effect on the marriage and, at a minimum, presented to the children an unhealthy example of matrimonial conduct. Plaintiff argues that such instances of gifts and routine associations with her boss do not go beyond the normal "friendship relationship with a man." The trial court obviously took a different view. Furthermore, to argue that such behavior and such a relationship could have been in any way "in the best interests of the children," is ludicrous.

5. Finding of Fact 5.E. That during the latter years of the marriage, Plaintiff's lifestyle changed and that change was not in the best interests of the family unit, but rather the change was pursuant to Plaintiff's desires and for her benefit to the exclusion of the family unit.

Plaintiff's pursuit of personal, selfish interests at the expense of the family unit is a resounding negative with respect to the overall best interests of the children. This notion is consistent with the opinion of the psychologist, Elizabeth B. Stewart, Ph.D., who, in her evaluation of Mrs. Marchant, under the heading "Capacity for Custody," states:

"Mrs. Marchant's desire for a better life for herself very probably will be a disadvantage for the children who may be exposed to a less desirable lifestyle."

(The entire context of Dr. Stewart's evaluation is attached in the Addendum as Exhibit 5.)

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